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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE'YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of the Cormpanies: Act 2006, present their
report with the: financial statements of the academy trust for the year ended 31 .August 2024 The trustees have adopted

the prowsvons of Accountmg and Reporting by Charities: Stafement of Recommiended Pract;ce applicable to charities.

preparing their aceounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting :Standard applicable in the UK -and Republic: 6f
Ireland. (FRS: 102) (effective 1 January:2019)-and the Academiies: Accounts. Direction issued by:the Education and Skills:
Funding-Agency.

The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report, and a:directors” report: and strafegic report under
company law. . '

In- September 2022 Aylesford ‘School converted to academy- status and 10|ned Wrotham -School in. the Character
Education Trust. -

Character Education Trust's vision:is:

Our vision is to grow. a family of scheols in both tie primary and secondary phases; that work. together to provide an
education. that builds character. We share a fission to devélop confident young people who ¢an make a pasitive:
difference to the world around them.

The Trustees are keen to:grow-a local MAT of five academies acfoss the priftiary and sécondary p’ﬁ'a'ée's.

During the year under réview the trust comprised of Wrotham ‘School & Aylesford School: Wretham: School is ‘an
Academy for pUpIIS aged 11 to 19 serving a catchment area in Tonbridge. and Malling, Sevenoaks and Gravesham in
Kent. It has.a pup|l capacity: of 716 ‘based on official 'net capacity' calctilations and had: & roll of 1, 043-in Octaber-2024
(2023:- 1,062). Aylesford School is. an Academy for pupils aged 11fo 19 serving a: catchment area in Tonbridge and
Maliing, Medway. and Maidstone. It has: a pupil capacity of 900 based on official *fiet capatity' Galculations and: had.a foll
0f 914:(2023 -1912). Wrotham School is to be rebuilt.under the School rebuilding Programme, and dunng this: penod of
reporting, leaders: at the Trust-worked with the. DfE to finalise the plans and: has completed the planning process. Work
started in Maich 2024. _ .
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

 REPORT OF THETRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives and aims

The: Brinciple objective :of Chatacter Edlication Trist is to: provide. education for students of different abilities and
achieves this by providing & state education, free of charge, to pupils up to the:age-of 19. In-exercising their powers, the
Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regards. to the:guidarice on public benefit published by-the Chafity
-Commission.

The main strategic aims of the Trust afe sumrarised below:
ato suppor’( every student to achieve acaderiic excellence and personal:siiceess
bloraise the standard of educatlonal achlevements of all students:
' on lolef students; so that they may make:a positivé contribution to Society
d'toinvestin staff and studentdevelopment through'» néw iriitiatives and apportunities
e to.provide value for money
fto develop a,small local MAT that values partherships: of equals, and aims to. grow excellent local. schools: that local
chiidrén; ¢an -attend together

The achievement of our-aims is reviewed using key measures including:

a the effectivieness of our broad cumiculurmand the: oppottunities'we providé to, develop character outside the:classroori
‘bacademic outcomes and progress of students

c 'thg',chara_ct_er reward received by students throughout the ‘'year; tracking' students: engagement with extra curricutar
activities;

d engagement in. training. including NPQs and the Trust's i house leadershlp programme; staff wellbeing activities

& monthly financial reporting;: benchmarkmg, reserves policy; success¢in the cbjectives above

f éngagement and collaboration with 6ther schools, trusts and rganisations

Puiblic Benefit

The: trustees: confirm that they have .complied. with: the duties.in Section 17(s) of the Charities Act 2011 to: have due
régard to the Chérity Commiission's general quidance on pubhc benefit.and in particular to its supplementary public
;beneﬁt guudance on advancing education.

We have Feferred to the guidance. in the Charty Comniission’s genéral guidarice on public. benefit when reviewing. our
aims and: objectlves and in planning our future acfivities. In particular, the trustees consider how: planned agtivities will
contribute to the-aims arid objectives they have set: The: public-benefit of Character Ediication Trust is the advancement
of educatior-within the. local commiinity:.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION. TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701) -

_ REPORT:OFTHE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Equal opportumtles policy

The Trust s an.equal oppertanity organisation and is committed to take. a positive stand to ensure all stakeholders: have
a fight to equality of opportunity and achievement regardless of racé and éthinicity, faith, belief. and religion, disability dnd
access; age, sex, sexual orientation, transsexualism, and marital status.

Equality .of oppertunity is related to all areas of the Trust's work and is @ fundamental aspect of the ethos &f the. Trust.

‘We. will rake reasonablé adjustments to iieét the heeds of staff of students who. are or bécome disabled. Lifts, ranips
and disabled toilets are installed and door widths are adequate to enable wheelchair-access. to all main -areas of the:
‘Academies.

Character Education Trust is. comitiitted to safeguarding and promoting the Welfare: of children and -yoiing - peaple, and
expects all staff and volunteers to share this commitment. All posts are subject to-an enhanced Disclosure Apphcatlon
to the Disclosure and Barring Service-and check against theISA Barred List for children.

Employee invoivement and employment of the.disabled

“The school has 7 lift in'the modem building at:Wrotham Schoal, ramps and disabled toilets are. installed-and door widths
afe.adequate to eriable wheelchair access 1o 4ll main: areas ofithe Trust. The policy:of-the Trust is-to support recruitment
and retention of students and -employees with disabilities.: The Trust does this-by adapting:the physical environment, by
making support resources available and through trairiing and career development. At Aylesford School all buildings: have
lifts arid-all toilet dreas hiave disabled foilets installed.

Employee Consultation
Trust staff-are empowiered to elect colleagiies to §it drid-servé: as goverriors. Trustées and Governors regularly meet with
staff ranging from attendance at formal board and committee meetings, Trustee visits and general open days where staff

can'meet and:talk to governors and trustees.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662704)

~ REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievemént and performarice .

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE 2023 - 24

The Trust

Finally welcoming Aylesford Scheol officially into: the Trust was & great achievement and one to be celebrated. The PFI
contfact had been a baftier for 3 fiumber of yedrs, and to gt the, go ahéad was great. We strengthened .our Executive
Team with the-appointment of a fiighly qualified and: experienced HR Director. Lots of our leaders completed National
Professional Qualifications and others started: them this year..

Wrotham ‘School
The: schaol has continued fo see the strong growth in students. wishing to join the: school; which is fiow taking over 200 -
students peryear group. Derarid for places:at the schaol is strong and students Surieys remain positive.

Leaders have continued to work with the DfE and other related parties to. complete-the final ‘planning: stages of the new
$chaol build. Dufing the pefiod of reporting, the plarining: application:was submittéd and approved by the local adthority.
Work has therefore started and the sxpected completion is September 2026.

The schaol suffered an incident with a school bus, taking many local students homé to the sufroundinig :afea. Many
castualties suffered a. range of injuries. The school has. worked: hard to: provide support with a range. of resources for
students to return {o.'school; Local charities have donated so'the sehoaol-could provide additional matefials and hours
including outside the normal school timetable.

The academy worked. at improving security with new fencing being installed and controlled gates to restfict moverments
oirto site.

The school celebrated a variety of sports success during the year including reaching area finals in football. There was
also success in‘cross country rurining:

The schools focus on the arts saw the ‘success of the school production-and school musie concert throughout the year:
Both. being well :attended.

Aylesford School N . . o
I March 2020 Ofsted completed a Section’s Inspection. All areas were judged to be ‘good"

As part of a PF| scheme, Mitie manages: the ‘upkeep-of the buildings, there hias been: basic maintenance completed
during the year. The school did complete required audits:of the facili ties in order to meet Stakeholdet requirements:

The $chool-completed further upgrades to |CT mcludmg new- interactive fouch: screens in more- classrooms as pan of
visual aidsfor teachers to Use.

2024 saw Aylesford-School achieve:its:best ever key stage:5 results In:addition, attendance ‘of students during the: year
was well above the national figures for attendance.

Aylesford School fémains: one of the main schools in-the counfry promoting Character Education after achieving its
Character Kite: Plus Mark in 2021, The school assists with assessments of schools trying to achieve the kite: mark and to
provide:support and guidance to: local schaols.

The sports departmenit continued to-see ‘success in regional and county level with Football and Rugby being victorious:
‘during the'yeat,
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT
‘Achievement afd performance:

Key performance:indicators and key financial performance-indicators

‘Key Performance Indicators.

Wrotham School

Key Stage 4

%.of students achieving grade 4+ in:English

% of students actiieving grade 4+ im Mathematics
% of studetits achieving grade 5+ in-English

% of students achiieving:grade 5+ in:Mathematics

Attainment 8
Progress &

Key stage 5.
‘% of grades at A* to C:(A levels and equivalent)

% of grades at A* to B (A levels;and equivalent)

‘Level 3 Value Added
A Level

Academic:
Vocational

Aylesford Schiool

Key Stage 4

% of students achievirig-grade 4+ inEnglish

% of students achieving grade 4+ in Mathematics
% of students achieving.grade 5+ in:English

% of students achieving:grade:5+ in Mathermatics

 Aftainment 8
Progress 8

Key Stage 5

‘% of grades at A* o C (A levels &rid equivalent)
% of grades at A" to B (A levels and equivalent)
Level 3 Value Added.

ALevel

Academic;

Vocational

2024 (Not validated data®)

T4%
66%
55%
- 46%

42.28
040

153%’
19%

034
0:32
-0:09

2024 (Not validated data®)

63%
57%
36%
27%
3567
0.84

2851
544

-0.18
013
0.20
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2023 (Validated data)

65%:
65%
45%.
39%

41.6

54%
1;7%

~0:71
-0.16

2023 (Validated data)

73%
65%
51%
:39%

9.7
+0.22

2417

475
A3
041




.CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

‘STRATEGIC REPORT .
Achigvemerit and.performance

Kev Fmancnal Performance lndlcators

were

Actual Actual Actual

2004 2023 202

% % %
Teactiing Staff B 58 58 56
Educational Support Staff 10 5 7.3
Other Academy:Support Staff - 8 10 .7
TOTAL 76 43 i

Financial review
Finaricial position
The trust's accountlng periad covers.the yiedr to 31 Augiist 2024.

The: majority of the.academny frust'sincorie is obtained. from the ESFA'in the forrn of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA durinig the year ended 31 Algust 2024 :and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds <in the ‘Statement of Financial Activities. Additional income is
achieved through lettings of the academy:facilities, including a 3G All-Weather faotball pitch.

"The academy trust also received grants for fixed assets. from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommernded, Practice “Accounting and Reparting by Charities” (SORP-2019); such grants are:shown: in‘the ‘Statemnt
of Finaricial Activitiés as restricted incoma in the fixed assets fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance: is reduced

by annual depreciation-charges over the:expected useful life-of assets:concerned.

Durinig the. year ended 31 Auguist.2024, fotal expeniditure was £16,728;184 (2023: £14,962,310) and reeuitrent grant
funding from the DfE' together with other incoming reseurces -amounted to £14,729,063 (2023 £13,250,894). This
funding does not reflect: the addition of assets from Aylesford ‘School 'who joined the trust. in 2023 of £hil (2023;

£35,100,383). Excluding movements in the pension and fixed.asset reserves, net (expenditure)/income was £(774,501)
(2023 £195, ,768). It should be noted that surpiiis funds are'held in the: fixed asset fund of £187,628 (2023: £138,280)
as the Trustees have: allocated these to a sinking fund for the: 3G pitch as they :are required to keep ‘the ipitch in good
condition :as ‘part of the grant funding agreement The total «of restricted general funds plus unrestricted funds {ize.

excluding the restricted fixed asset:fund: and: pension reserve) at the 31 Augst 2024 was a deficit of £(222 065)(2023:

surplus £793,800):.

At:31 Augiist:2024, the net'book:valuie-of tangible fixed assets was £42,432,899 (2023: £43;544,588) arid ihoveémeits:in
tangible fixed assets are shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The :assets were used exclusively for providing
education, including associated support services to the: pupils of the academy trust and furthering the other Objects of
Character Education Trust.

Investment policy-and objectives

There <aré fo investments held beyonid. cash deposits retained with the major UK clearing: banks. Speculative.
investments are not perrmtted
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST{(REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701).

- REPORT OF THETRUSTEES
{FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST :2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial review.

Reserves policy’

'The: Trustees. have formalised a policy:on reserves, which is held: séparately Within the bidget and available to support
the strategic aims -of the Trust. This is;monitored by Trustees and Management to ensure: that sufficient reserves are
maititained to meetanticipated future rieeds while avoiding long tefm accumulation of excessive funds.

With immiinent changes to the funding formula it is essential that adequate revenue funds are:available to suppoit fitire
staffing structures and curriculuni initiatives, all of which is constantiy reviewed through Leadership and Management
and/or Trustee visits.

Thé total funds. held af 31 August 2024 were £42,356,415; Spllt between unrestricted funds: of £nil (2023: £648,305), a
GAG deficit of £(222,065) (2023 surplus £145 495) pension deficit £19,000' (2023: £17,000) and fixed asset funds.
£42,597,480 (2023; £43,655,736). .

The trustees have determined that the appropriate level of freé teserves should be-between 3 arid 5% of annual revenue
income which amounts to.£441,295 - £735,490 {2023: £394,156 -.£656,928). The reason for this is to provide sifficient
working capital to: cover delays between:spending and receipt of grants.and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected:
emergencies. Trustees also bélieve that: the Trust should ot hold excessive: levels of reserves as: funds. should be
being used for the benefit of existing children ‘at iits :academies. The current leve] of free tesenes is a deficit of
£(222,065) (2023: surplus £798,800) which is-curreritly below what we would expect. Comment is including in the going
concem paragraph below regarding this matter.

The trust holds funding: available for the' Widtham' Schaol 3G pitch which is net available for general purposes of school
education whlch amounted to.£187,628 (2023: £138,280):and is held wuthln the restricted fixed asset fund..
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER:.07662704)

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

’Eihahcial_‘:r_ei_ii‘ew

Going concern )

After making appropriate.enquiries and in;light of the-significant deficit on funds, the-Boatd of Trustees has reviewed how
the financial position of the trust will contiriue: and. have -ovér seeh an €xténsive réview of budgets going; forward. The
Board has analysed the reasons: for the deficit that.occurred i the ‘year and what preventative: steps .can be taken to
avoid this ‘aceurring in the future. The leadership of the trust has completed extensive budget review for futiire years. to
build surpluses back up.

The schools have both experienced costs that were not expected when' 'setting the original budgets mainly- linked to .
schaol personnel. There have also been costs linked to future: commitiments that have béeri récognised at the- first
opportumty

With: the. steps. on: budget control, the trust will be- mohitoring. more closely the monthily- pérformance with the firiance
&ommittee- reéting monthly goirig forward. The deficit in- reserves means that the. trust is- facing an uncertain future;
Unforeseen costs could further exacerbate the situation. The expected:outturn: for 2024/25 financial. year is.currently &
surplus of c..£125k this. is very different to the Budget Forcast Refiim thatwas subiiiitted to thie ESFA which had forcast
aloss of £100K.

The improvements in the anticipated.out turn are due. to'the following factors:

£000
Unbudgeted SEN incorme o o8
‘Shiortfall in estimate: of Teachers pay‘and pérision grant 30
Staff savings. 9
Improvement to budget:outtum 225
Farecast per original BFR _(100y
Revised forcast position 125

Whilst the, revised budgeted eutturn is positive, reserves will still not be in:a positive position -t the.end of the 2024125
finanicial year. In addition, the above: forcast doesht include: any (nforeseen: expenditure on buuldmgs and assets .over
and :above the capital finds that we have: budgeted to. receive in the financial year. If is: apparent that the Academy'
Trustwill need'ta relyon the forbearance. of ifs-creditors to enable itito-continue for'the foréséeable future. ‘The deficit in
feseives represents a maléfial tncerainty and may- cast doubt on the academy trusts abtllty to continue as a going
concem and therefore:whether the academy: trust will realise its. assefs and settle its liabilities‘in. the ordinary course :of
business at'the amaunts recorded in the financial statements.

The trust board consider that the revised forcast surplus that:should be achieved ‘in 2024/25, and the forbearance .of
creditors should enable:them to successfully navigate: the trust through its difficulties and for this reason whilst:disclosing
the. uncertainties -that afe: in: existence, it continles. to adopt the going, coneam basis. in: prepanng the financial
statements. Further details' regarding the adoption of the. going concern basis -can be ‘found in the Statement. of
Accounting Policies. '
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

 REPORTOF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial review

Funds in deficit

The Local Govemment Peision Schemé is stated in the accaunts to. be in deficit in the sum of £19,000 (2023: £17,000)
as at the:balance sheet date. It should be: noted however that:this deficit will hot érystallise within the-foreseeable fiiture
and that the academy, trust follows the advice .of the: pension scheme. actuary.and makes contributions in -accordance
with the tates advised. The advised level of contributions has beeri take it account when: preparing the academy’s
budgets for the:year ending 31 August 2025.

The GAG furid is al$é:in deficit amiounting to £(222,065) (2023: surplius: £145,495),

Fundraising

Theé trust:doés not currently‘use external fundraisers to generate funding for the trust. All internally generated fundraising

undertaken during the year was monitored by the trustees:

The tnist.completed-a sponsored- walk for the students in July. The school was able to have charity:quizzes and a:jumble
sale during'the year.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to
.teachlng/academlc performance, provision of facilities and other operational areas -of the: Trust, and its finarices. The
Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust-faces, especially i in the operational area
{e:g. n relation to teaching, heith and safety, bullying:and school tripsj and in relation to the control of finance. They:
have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff :and -visitors, supervision on
academy grounds)-and intemal financial confrols in-order to-minimize risk. Where significant financial risk sfill remains:
they have ensured they have adequate insurancé cover. The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls
and this is explained in more: detail in the Governance Statement.

The Trustees have considered the risks presented to the Trust.and have implemented pohctes and systems fo mitigate
these risks. The Academy Trust will continue to managde these risks, through a series of performance: reviews,

monitoring-and efficiency evaluation, to ensure that any fufure annual deficit can be met by reserves. The Trustees have
deemed the following risks:o be of most serious consequences to the Academy:

a) Failure to successfully recruit and retain students;

The Trust's ability to sticcessfully récriiit and retain-students is key to the financial v1ab|!|ty of the Trust. Maintaining the.
reputatlon of the Trustas- one of the higher performmg non-selective schools in Kent, is key in mitigating this risk as its
vision: to prioritising academic excellence, high :expectations and -developmerit of character, being inclusive and
developing the highest quality of teaching and learfiing.

b) Impact on Trust's funding as.a result of changes to-education and fiscal policy:

Given the propertion of income-that arises from central and local Government, any changes to their education: andfiscal
policy, will impact.on the firianicial viability of the Trust. Additional pressure ‘is being put on the Trust's finances given
predicted' changes to educati‘onal funding pellcies combmed wuth |nﬂat|onary press'ures addlhonal cosfs arIS|ng from
monltonng of monthly management accounts comblned wnth budgebng for the next thr,ee yea_rs Where necessary
corrective action is‘taken to keep costs in line with the Trust's funding and predicted number of students:

¢) Impact of uncontrollable event, e.g. fire:or flood:

The impact of a serious uncontrollable event such as fire or flood would have: a significant impact on the Trust and so the
risks from this are minimised by ensuring insurance and systems are up to date. An asset mianagement plan is in place
to address- routine maintenance, planned maintenance ‘and repair and other compliance. The Trust monitors. the sites
termly to review existing maintenance schedules and plans for repairs to keep both sites meeting the relevant
regulations for site.. This with Aylesford Scheol means working alongside the PFI stakeholders who complefe: additional
audit checks yearly. At Wrotham expertise from the site manager and third party experts allow for the monitoring of the
site over a regular period. This is:monitored by the: trust board :and the local goveming body:

The plans and-strategies employed to manage the abave risks are explained in: the Governance Statement.
d) Deficit of funds

The funds.in deficit this year have been due to unexpected costs: that have arisen in relation to school personnel. The
trust has a plan in place, as detailed i the reserves palicy to address this deficit, '

Page 12




CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT
Future plans » _
The Trustees are commltted to growing: & medlum MuttJ Academy Trust whlch W|II tnctude academtes/schools from the )
‘chatlenge and support that benefts all when. eeheelé work together The trust Works alongsme schools Who aré not ina
trust to:show the benefits with no pressure: of being forced to join & tryst.

The Trist working with Department of Edugation on’ the rebiiild of Wrotham Schiool.. Plarining pefiiission was. sought
during the year for the: rebuild of the site to meet modern requirements. The school is looking for reserves to:assistiin the
- new:-equipment required. for the schoal.

The school worked to make sure the site was:secure with-new. fencing'to maintain a secure boundary.

The trust is using its:knowledge: from the past thirteen years to consider” ‘where fture spénding is required. The trust has
worked hard over the past four years-to build reserves so capital expenditure: could be completed. This'is offset with the
knowledge of urgent expendlture for S|te development or, curnculum requrrements could be made dunng the year. The.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Trustis a company fimited by guarantee and an-exempt.charity and: was set:up by a memarandum of-association on
8 June 2011. The charitable company's memorandum. and articles of assodiation are the primary governing documents
of the Academy Trust. The Trustees of Character Educatioh. Trust are. also: the directors. of the charitable company for
the-purposes of company.| law. The charitable company-operates as Character'Education Trust,

Detatls of the frustees who: served during the year, and to the date these accoints. are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Details on: page {.

Menibers' liability

Each member ofthe. charitable. company tindertakes to contribute to the:assets of the charitable company in the: event of
it being wound up-while they are:a memiber; or within-one yearafter they cease to.be a member, such-ameunt as' may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to-bie a membier:.

Trustees' Indemnities

Directors’ & Officers' insurarice is in ptace throtigh the ESFA Risk Protection Assurance scheme This policy: has a Timit
of indeminity of-£10,000,000. The coveris for legal liability for claims: -arising froma breach of professronal duty: by reason
of any neglect, -error or omission:
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Recruitment and appointment of new trustees

The Board is currently comprised of 8 Trustees; of whom one is a Staff Trustee and none .are Parent Trustees. The
appointment of Trustees is governed by the Company's Atticles of Association. The members of the Company- may *
appoint up to. 20 Trustees. They may also appoint Staff Trustees;through such process as they. may determine, providing
fio. more than one third of the Trustees: are- employees. of the: Company. The Chief Executive Officer automatically
becomes a Trustee upon appoeintment. The Board of Trustees will recruit Trustees according to the needs of the Trust
and the skills the Board of Trustees require.

The trust advertise-for trustees based on skills set required on a variety of different platforms: An interview process with
the chair of trust will take place:before: the committee will consider if the appaintment should take place.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees. .
The training and induction provided for new. Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Arv indiiction prografime
is available to all new Trustees, and this includes.a meeting with the Chief Executive Officer, Head teacher and Chair of
Trustees, & tour of the Academy, a welcome pack ‘and .an induction booklet, which includes. copies of relevant. policies-
and pracedures.

Where necessary, induction will include: training in charity, educational, legal :and financial matters relevant to the
opération of the Comipany. They are also provided with an ‘annual training programme for both internal workshops/
training.and external specific Academy Trustee courses. A.caréful record of Trustees' training is rmaintaified.

The Trust ensures that all Trustees are:provided with the information needed to undertake their rale as Trustees.

Organisational structure

The Trustees:are responsible for'setting the: strategic direction of the Trust. They hold the: executive leadership team to
account for the effective implementation of the trust strategy and operating plan, including in relation to the. use of
resoufcés and the drivers :of impact. The board assures itself of the iritegrity of financial information; that there are
Tobust risk controls and risk management systems; and that there is compliance with- regulatory, contractua! and
statutory requiremients, including safeguarding..

The Board of Trustees comprises those persans appointed under the Articles of Assaciation. The board meets seven
times in a-year. The Trust Board receives reports from the CEQ and other members of the. Executive. The Trust Board
also operates as a Finance and Audit Committee and includes relevant agenda items at least three times a year. This
committee: is focussed on identifying, reviewing and, managing risk, as well as:ensuring that the Trust meets its financial
obligations. ,

The Board delegates a number of specific-responsibilities to the Local Governing Bodies of the schools on the: review of
education, safeguarding -and .academic results; the activities of which are: reported to and discussed -at: full Board
Meetings. The:responsibility of Health and Safety.is maintained by a trust board membir for both schools.

A Strategic Leadership Group is-comprised of the Chief Executive Officer (who is also the Chief Accounting Officer), the
Director of Firiance, the Diréctor of Human Resources and the Headteachers. They lead the Trust at an executive level
ensuring full comphance with the policies-set out by the. Trustees. The Strategic Leadership Group dlso exists to ensure
that. collaboration is effective; to ensure that Headteachers are supported; to ensure that good leaders develop: more
leaders. At:each academy/school the Headteacher has a leadership team consisting of Deputy and Assistant, Head
teachers. A scheme of delegation éxists to ensure. that résponsibilities for leadership décisions and accountability are
clear,

Spending control is devalved to thie Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Finance. A financial scheme of delegation
is in operation with limits above which cheques/approvals are countersigned by a Trustee.

The appointment panel for leadership posts across the Trust always includes a Trustee.
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'CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

 REPORTOF THETRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT'

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration ‘of key management personnel

The Trustees and, Chief Execitive Officer establish all leadership structure for the: Trust-and determinie its membership.,
The Trustées detérmine the salary cales for the leadership grodp, incliding the Chilef Executive ‘Officér and Head
teachers. Trustees take: account of the following factars in the-determining the pay of the Chief Executive Officer, Head
‘teachers, Deputy and Assistant Head teachers, the Human Resources Director and. the Director of Finance; as laid out
in the Trist:Pay:and Appraisal Policies.

= levelof responsibility - experience

- performance. - -affordability

- sizeand structure of the Leadershlp Team - Aquallf ications:

= recruitment.and retention issues = vision and ambitions of the Trust
- market valiie - recruitment dnd fetention issues:

“Trade union: facnllty time

This. infotmation ‘is published in: accordance with the provisions of the Trade Urion (Fagility Time Publication
Requirements) Regulations 2017 because the academy trust had a full-time equivalent.employee: number of more than
49 throughout the entirety-of any seven of the months:within the year ended 31 August2024.

Relevant union officials. _
Number of emplayees who were relevant union officials:  Full-time.equivalent employee.number
duting thé relevant pefiod

Nit 192

Percentage of time.spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number-of employees
0% Nil

1-50% Nil

51:99% Nif

100% Nit

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility:time Nil

Total pay:bill 10,972,726

Perceritage of the total:pay bill spent on facility timeé calculated as:
(total cost of fagility time: = totalpay bill) x 100 0%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent.on paid trade union activities as a percentage:of total paid facility timehours calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade: union activities by

relevant union-officials dufing the refevant period + total .
paid facility time: hours) x 100 0%
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED.31 AUGUST 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND:MANAGEMENT

Related parties

Where Trustees: offer their 'services. to the Trust their interest is tecorded on the. re!evant paperwork: and the
circumstances:discussed by the:Board, The Chief Executive. Officeris an employee of the.company.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN FOR OTHERS
The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 hursary. funds to the students asian agent for the: ESFA. Details including ‘any
‘amounts rot dispersed by the financial year end:are-disclosed in ndte 17 to-the financial statements.,

AUDITORS o ‘ ‘ }
The atditors, McCabe Ford Williams, will be: proposed for ré-appointmierit at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

In‘so far as the trustees: are:aware:

- there is no-relevanit audit information of vitiich the charitable-company's auditor'is unaiware; and _

- the trustéés have taken ail steps that they olight. to have: taken to make themselves aware of :any rélevant audit
information"and to establish that the auditors. aware of that information.

Répa of the truste orporatmg a strateglc feport, approved by ofder of the board of trustees, as the: compahy
directors, on ... efs T ..and signed-on the board's behalf by:

S:Smith - Trustee

Page 16



CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED:NUMBER: 07662701}

_ GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

‘SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall fesponsibillty. for-ensuring that Character Education Trust has an effective
and -appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system:is desrgned to. manage: fathér than
eliminate thé: risk of failure to. achieve business objectives, and can provrde only reasonable.and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement:of loss.

As trustees, we have. reviewed ‘and taken'.account of the guidance:in' DfE's. Governance Handbook and competency
framework for ‘govemnance.

The:board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Head teacher, and from 1 December
»2024 the Head teacher at Wrotham School as accountmg oﬁ"cer for ensunng ﬁnanmal controls conform W|th the'

;responsnbllltles assugned o itin the fundrng agreement ‘between: Character Education. Tmst and the Secretary of State
for Education. 'They are also. responsrble for reparting to the board 6f trusfees ahy material wieaknesses-or breakdowns,
in intemal contral.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

‘GOVERNANCE A A o
The: information on governance included here: supplements that. déscribed in the Repoit of the Trustees and in the
Statement, of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of titistees has formally met: 7 times during the year. Attendance
»dunng the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows;

Trustée . Meetings:attended Qut.of a. possible
S Smith (Chair). 6 S
LBlumsum 7 7
A Clarke (appointed 25.3.24) 2 3
DJADay (appointed 4.12 23) 4 6
A Malik: 3 7
R Metzler o 7
M€ Reeve T 7
T S Juty (appointed 4.12.23) (resigned 5.2:24) 3 3
M Wright (CEO:and Accaniting Officer) T 7

There were three appointments:and one resignation during the year.
The Trust Board's work this:year has been focused o the following key-areas:

- The quality of provision and outcomes for students at Wrotham S¢hool (Academy)
- The leadership aid mariagement of Trust finances:
To'waork:on expanding the site including buﬂdmg a.CIF expansion bid and working with the Departrent of
= Education for:potential redevelopment of the school.
Trustees have bean co-opted onto. the local:governing body of Aylesford Schoal to support:and develop the
quality of-govemance;
Trustees have ‘met with Chairs.of Governers of local sehdals to inforin tiém of the:work 6f Character Education
= Trust,
- The quality of provision and outcomes: for students:at Wrotham Schoot and Aylesford Schioi

In Septembier 2020 the Trust: further developed its goverhance structure to create -a separate trust board and a local
governing body-for Wrotham School, This is reflected at Companies House which shows: members of the trust resigning
to become members. of the local:governing body:

The trust works hard to make sure there .are sufficient processes in place to avoid conflicts of interests. The: trust
monitors: registers of interests for Aylesferd ‘School, W ' Schidol ‘and the frist. Whete reguired there are ¢ledr
separation of: rolés. arid: ronitoring résponsibilities amongst the local goveming bodies:and the trust board. The trust has
h& ownérship issues of any. subsidiaries, joint ventures or.associates,

Durinig the year; the Review-of Governance ararigements, including skills 4tidit, was: undertaken ‘and no shortfalls in any
&reas.wre-fotind.

The Board of Trustegs review: Govemarice arrarigenents anrially and this involves a skills audit.

The Board also acts:as a finance, audit:and risk-committes;
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CHARACTER EDUGATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701

. GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST 2024

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As accounting officer, the Exéclitive Héad teacher, .and froin 1 Decembeér 2024 the. Head teacher at. Wrotham Schaol
has: responsibility for ensuring that the :Academy Trust delivers good value. in the use of public: resources. The:
accounting officer undefstands that value for money refers to the: educational and wider: societal outcomes, as-well as
estates safety and management; achieved i tetuim for the taxpayer reséiirces received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic:year, and reports to the Board of Tristees:where valué for money can bé |mproved including the
use-of benchmarking data where available. The accounting ‘officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved Value
for money dunng the'year by:

= Using both central and:lecal government frameworks to secure: competitive prices on major areas of
expenditure incliding energy

- Reviews.bytrustees to dnalyse: Key Péiformance Indicators at Wratham and Aylesford schools toidentify areas:
of review:to be considered by a trustee. when reviewing the: finances:of the frust.

- Berichimarking financial data not only-across the two:schaals but also with other similar schools:,

- Reviewing all contracts: a$ they ¢me- up for renéwal, to erisiite that the Trust is dctileving:valtie for money and:
that risk is' being minimised.

- Comipleting fendering process for projects completed during the year.

- ‘Tomonitor the schaoal sité to make Sure that the:site is.safe including boilér maintenancé and energy -efficiency
reviews

- Review the maintenarice of the-grounds including changing suppliers for grounds maintenance at Wrotham
Schoal.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL.

The systern of internal controlis desighed. to manageé: risk to a reasonable level rather thian to eliminate all risk of failure

to achieve policies, -aims and -objectives.. It can therefore only prov1de reasonable and .not ‘absoliite assurance ‘of
effectivéness. The system of internal contral is based on an.on-geing process designed to‘identify and prioritise the risks.
t the achiévenient of academy trust policiés, aims.and objéctives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised

and the impact should they. be realised, and to. manage: them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system: of
internal control has been in place. in Character Education Trust for the period 1.September 2023 to-31 August 2024 and
up:to the date of approval of the annual report and finangial staterments.

The :school ‘appainted Juniper Education for carrying ‘out internal reviews. Two reviews ‘were: carried ‘out on the
effectiveness of finanéial control:and procuremenit meéasures.

_cAp}\cmzro; HAND_L-E R_IZSK:

wew that there is:a. formal on-gomg process for ldentnymg, evaluatmg and managmg the academy trust's s;gmf cant nsks.»
that has béen in place for'the period 1 September2023:to 31 August 2024 and up:to the: date, of approval of the annual
reportand financial statements. This process.is regularly reviewed. by.the board of trustees.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT =~
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 _AUGUST 2024

THE RISK.AND: CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The: -academy's system of internal -contro| is. based on -a framework of regular managerent infarmation; -ahd
administrative. procedures including tié segregation of diiies and a 'system «of delegatioh :and -accountability. Tn
pamcular lt mcludes

;reVIewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

- regular reviews by the trust board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major
purchase plans, capital works and expendlture programmes;.

= sefting targets to measure financial and:other performance

- Cleartydefified: purchasmg (asset purchase or capltal investment):guidelines;

- delegation of authonty and segreganon of dutles ‘and

- identification and franagement 6f risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific.intemnal audit function and has decided to appoint an
intemal auditor. The trustees alsa completed. intemal reviews on the finance: function as well as those conducted by
Jutiper Education.

The intermial-auditors' role includes givirig advice on. financial matters and performing a rarige of checks on the Trust's .
financial systems. Iri particular the:checks. carried out:in the: current period included:

- Reviewof budget setting and forward planning processes’ ‘including reserves policy
- 'Revieivand testing of procuiémient processes

- Review-of credit card payments

«  Reviewof contragt listing

The internal auditors* report to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the ‘'systems of control and on:the discharge of
the: Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. This‘is completed every two. terms.

Juniper was chosen as a sub contractor due fo their extensive knowledge and experience in providing internal reviews.
Someone recruited would not have allowed for benchmarking with other trusts. The trust-also wanted & review from.an
extemal source not linked to the trust.

REVIEW'OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Actounting Officer, the Executive Head teacher; arid from.1 Decernber. 2024 the Head teacher at Wrothiami School
has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the: system of intemal: controf. .During the year in question the review
has been informed by:

- the:work of the ihterfial atuditsi:
- the work of the extemal auditor;-and
[ ive manzgers. within the academy triist who haveé: réspensibility for thé development and
_mamtenance of the intemal control frameiwark.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the-result of their review of the system of intémal control
bythe trust board and a plan to address-weaknesses.and ensure continiious lmprovement of the:system. is-in place.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

‘GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

CONCLUSION

Based ani the advice of the audit.and risk.committee and the. accounting officer, the board of tristees i§ 6F thé opinicn:

that the acaderny trust hiaé an adequate and effective framiework for governance;, risk management and.control.

M Cater - Acting Accounting Officer
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07663701) - -

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

As accounting:officer of Character Education Trust | have-considered my; responsnbmty to motify. the academy’ ‘trust board
of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)-of material irregularity, impropriety:and non-compliance
with teris and conditions -of 4l -funding, including for estates. safety and management, under the funding -agreement
between the academytrust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part.of my consideration | have had due: regard
to-the requirements of the: Acadeniy Trust Handbook 2023, inciuding responsibilifies for estates safety'and management.

I confirm that | and the ‘academy.trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds, by the: academy trust, or maferial non-compliance with the terms .and ganditions: of*funding urider the academy'
trust's funding agreéement and the Academy Trust Handbook:2023.

F'confirm. that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding - non-compllance discovéred to date
have: been notified to the board of tristees and ESFA. If any instances are identified after the date «of this statement,
these-will be notified.to the board of trustees and ESFA. .

The academy-trust hds a significant deficit on reserves which it did not forecast. There has been-a failure to recognise
through .out the year that the level of deficit being suffered would utilise; the brought forward reserves and: result in-a
deficit on overall funds at the: year end- Accordmgly we have failed t6 notify:the ESFA. that Wi are in & budget deficit
posmon whach ¢ain fiot now: be 'addressed after taking into acéaunt unspeht funds for previous years.

.M e ater ‘ Acnng Accountlng Officer

vater .. MOLHLZ ...
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees (who act as govemnors of Character: Education Trust.and are also the directors of the.charitable company
for the purposes. of Gompany law) aré fesponsible: for préparing the Repot of the Trusfees and the financial statements
in-accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the. Education and Skills. Funding Agency, United
Kingdorm Accouriting Standards. (United Kingdem ‘Generally Accepted Aceounting Practice) and ‘applicable law and
regulations.

Company law reqiires the trustees fo prepare financial statements. for each: financial year. Under company. law the
trustees. must not approve the finanéial statemeits tinless they dre: satisfied that they- dive & true and fair view of the
state of affalrs of the chantable company and ofits mcommg resources: and appltcatlon of resources mcludmg ifs‘incomé

- select suitable accounting poli_cies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the métheds.and principles in the Charities: SORP 2019 and the. Academies Accounts: Direction. 2023 to 2024;

- make judgments.and accounting estimates that-aré réasoriable afid prudent;
- 'state whether applicable UK Agcounting Standards.(FRS 102): have been-foilowed, subject to any matefial departures
disclosed and explained.in the: financial statements; and

- prepare the-financial statéments onthe going concern basis. unless it i inappropriate to presume that the charitable
‘company- will continue in.business.

The trustéés dre. tesponsibié for keeping adequate dceoiinting records that are sufficient to:show' and explain: the
charitable :company’s transactions and disclose with ‘reasonable accuracy at any time the: finaricial position of the
charitable compariy and enable‘them to enisure that the finangial statements comply with: the Companies Act:2006. They
are also:respornisible for:safeguarding the assets. of the charitable company and hence: for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention: and-detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The tristees are responsible for ensiiring that in:its condiict and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform to the requirements both: of propriety-and of goad financial management. They aré also
.respon5|ble for ensuring grants received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency-and Department for Education
have been applied for the purpases interidéd.

The trustees are responsmle for the- maintenance- and integrity: of the: corporate and financial information included on: the:
charitable -comparny's Website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of'
financial statements may differ from legislation in other’ junsdlctlons -

Approved by order of the:board of trustees on w}"”*JQJr .................. .and signed-on it behalf by:

S Smith-- Trustee
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST

Opinion

We have: audited the financial statemiehts of Character Education Trust (the 'academy trust)) for the. year ended
31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement
of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a)summary,of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is. applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the: Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency: (ESFA).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give atrue and fair view:of the state of the academy trust's.affairs as at- 31 August.2024 and of ifs incoming resources
and application of resourees, including its income and:expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies. Act 2006; and

* = have been prepared inaccardance with'the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accournits Direction 2023 to 2024

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with. International Standards -on Auditing (UK) {IsAs - (UK)) and applicable: law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors' responsubllmes for the -audit of the
financial :statements 'section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordarice with the ethical
requirerents.that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements. in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and.we have fulfilled. our other ethical responsibilities in-accordance with these requirements. We believe: that. the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient:and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion..

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We: draw- attention to nete 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that the trust has negative resérves and will
need to carefully manage its finarices and rely upon. the forbearance of its creditars while it séeks to replenish its
reserve's fo a sufficient level. As stated in note 1, these events or conditions along with other matters set forth in note 1,
indicate that a material uncenalnty exists that may cast significant doubt.on the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern,. Our opinion is.not modified in respect of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees use of the going concem basis. 6f accounting
in the preparation of the financial statemenis is.appropriate.

Our responsibilities and the. responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern -are described in. the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information ) S
The trustees are: responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information: included in the
Annual Report; other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements' does not cover the other information: and, except fo the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do ot express any form of assurance conclusion therfeoh.

I connection with our audit of the financial statements; our responsibility is to- read the .othér iriformation :and, in ding
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements: or our knowledge
obtainéd in. the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies. or
.apparent material misstatements, we .are required to determine whether this gives fise to a matefial misstatement in the
finanicial statements themselves. If; based :on the.-work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we:are réquiréd to report that fact. We: have nothing to report in this regard.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHARACTER EDUCATlON TRUST

Opinions on other matters: prescribed by the Companies Act:2006

In ouf opinion, based o the wiork undertaken inthe course of the audit:

= the information given in' the Report of the Trustees for the: financial year for which: the financial Statements are
prepared is consistent with: the _ﬁnancsa,l statements; and

- the Réportofthe Trustees has been prepared in'accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters-on which we are required-to report by exception
In‘the light of the: knowledge: arid understandmg of the academy trust and its environment obtained.in the course of the
audit, we: have not identified material-misstatements in-the Repott of the Trustees.

We have nothifig to reportin respett of the following matfers where: the Companies Act 2008 requiires us to reportto you

if; i our opinign:

- -adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums: adequate for -our audit have not been: received from
‘brancties notvisited by us; o

- the financial statements are. not in agreement with the accotinting records and refiims; or

~ certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are:not made; or’

- ‘Wé-havénot réceived all the:inférmation and explanations we require for our audit.

Respansibilities of trustees

As éxplainéd more filly in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibiliies, the: trustees. (wha, are also the directors: of the
charitable company forthe purposes of company’law) are responsibie for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true :and fair view, and for:such internal. control as the triistees.deteriine is necéssary
to enable the preparation of finahcial statements that.are free from.material misstatemerit, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the trustees: are responsible for assessing the academy trust's -ability to ¢ontinué
as a.going' coricen, disclosing; as apphcable matters related to going concern :and using the: going concern basis: of
accounting unless the trustees either interid o liquidate. the: academiy trust or to-cease operations; or have no- realistic
alternative:buit o do'so..
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due-to fraud or error, and to'issué a Report of the Independent Auditors that inclides our
opinion. Reasonable assuranice is a high level of assirance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will- always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if; individually or in the-aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to infiuence
the economic decisionis. of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are
instances of non-compliance with laws .and regulations. We design procedures. in line-with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud..

The extent to which our prioced‘Ures are.capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities; including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

- the 'engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities
and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance withapplicable laws and regulations;

- we identified the laws and regulations applicable ta the company- through discussions with trustees and management
and our experience of the sector;

- we focused on :specific faws and regulations. which we considered may have a direct material effect on: the financial
statements or'the operations of the academy trust, including, but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
‘SORP 2019, the:Academy Trust Handbook 2023 and UK tax legislation;

- we assessed the exterit of compliance with the laws and regulations idéntified above through making énquiriés of
management; and

- identified laws and regulations were. communicated: within: the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of nan-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the:academy trust's financial statements to material misstatement; including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

- thaking énquifies of management and the tristees as to wheré they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected.and alleged fraud; '

- reviewing the reports praduced via the academy trust's intenal scrutiny function;

- considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override-of controls; we:

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

- assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in note 1 were.
indicative of potential bias; and _

- investigated the rationale behind significarit or unusual fransactions.

In responsg to the risk of irregularities and non:compliance with laws and regultions, we desigried procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

- agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

- reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

- enqumng of management as to:actual and potential litigation and claims; and

- reviewing correspandence with HMRC and relevant regulators such as the ESFA.

Because of the irherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the: financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the.
more that compliance with.a law or regulation is removed from the events..and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to beconie awaré of instances of nan-compliance. The fisk is also greater regarding
iregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation. '

Page 26



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST

Afurther description.of our respofisibilities: for the audit of the financial statemients is located 6n. the: Finaricial Reporting
Council's:website :at www:fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This-deseription forms part of our Report of the Independent
Auditors.

Use:of our report

This report is made solely to the: academy trust's members, as a body, i accordance- with Chapter 3 of Part 16-of the
Caompanies Act 2006. Our-audit work has been undertakén so.that wé might state to the academy trust's mémbers those
matters we.are required to state to them in an auditors*report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permiitted by
law; we do not accept or assume responSIbmty to anyone other than the academy trist and the .academy: trist's

for and: Cn behalf of McCabe Ford Wlhams
Statutory Auditors and Chartered Accountants
’Buudlng 1063

Kent. Scle,nc_e Park;
Sittingbourmne:
Kent

ME98PX

Date: rkoL)ﬂr ...............
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO:
CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In"accordance with the. terms. of our engagement. and: further to-the requirements of the. Education and -Skills Finding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an-engagement fo
‘obtain limited assurance. abut whether the- sxpenditure disbirsed dnd incéitie réceived by Character Eduieation Trist
during the peried 1 September:2023 fo 31 August 2024 have: been applied to the purposes identified by. Parliament:and
the financial transactions conform to the autharities which:govern them.

This report is made solely to Character Education Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the. terms: of our engagement
lefter, Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Charagter Education Trust and the ESFA those matters
we. are.required to state in: a report and for no thet purpose. To the fuillest extent pen'mtted by:law, we do iot accépt o
-assume. responsnblhty to-anyone otherthan Character Education Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilitles of Character Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible; underthe requirements. of Charagter Education Trust's fundmg ‘agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant fram 1 Septémber 2023, for ensuring that
expenditure: disbursed .and income received is apphed for the purposes intended by Paliament and the financial
transactions conform to'the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this éngagement are established in the: United Kingdom by our profession's ethical-guidance and
are to ‘obtain limited -assurance ‘and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the reqmrements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to°2024. We Teport to you whether anything ‘has come to our atfention in carrying .
‘out our work which suggests that in-all matetial respects, éxpenditiire disbiirsed and income: feceived dufing the period
1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to: purposes intended by Parhament or that the: ﬁnancla}
transagtions do:not conform to the authonties which govern them.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING:ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPQRT.ON REGULARITY TO:
'CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND:SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY.

Approdch:

We ‘conducted our engagement. in ‘acdordance with: the Framework dand Guide for Extemal Auditors and Reporting

Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We: performed & limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective -of a limited: -assurance engagement is to: perform ‘such procedures as to obtain informatién” and

explanations in order to:provide ts:with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in:scope than ‘a reasonable assurance: engagement: and conseguently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all sngnlﬂcant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable asstirarice engagement. Accordingly, we do not express & posmve Opinion.

‘Our engagement: incliides examination, on 2 test basis, of evidence refevant to the regularity and propriety. of the
'academy trust's’i mccme and expendlture

“The wark undertaken fo draw to our conclusion includes:

- Review of the intermnal contrel environment which-is designed to-ensure:compliance: with regulations;

- Review of the accoiiriting officer's: consideration, of issues. surrounding regularity; propriety and compliance;

- Review of the work.and reports:of the.iritenal réviewer during the period;

- Review of govemance arrangements and procedures and related compliance with thé reqiirements of the Acadenies

Finanicidl Handbook, including the-distribution of management accounts and quantity of meetings.

- Analytlcal procedurés regarding declaration of potential-conflicts of interest by key staff and the geverning body;
- Review of fixed-asset transactions against the requirements of the fundlng agreement between Charactér Education

Trust and the Seeretary of State and the Academies. Financial Handbook;
- Testing -of grarits and other iricome.for application in accordarice with the terms‘and reqmrements atfached;
< Review .of the academy trust's activities. to check they are in fine- with thé. Acadernies ‘Framework and the acadery

trust's charitable-objectives;
-Review-of Bank statements and financial transactions for indications of any items. which may be'i improper;
~ Review: of bank ‘accounts to check that they-are operated within the terins of the académy trist's governing document

and borrowinig limits imposed by the funding agreement are not exceeded;

. Tésting of expenditure, including; experise claims for- signs of transactions for personal benefit;
~Review:of any extra-contractual payments: made to staff;
~Review of procurement activity during the-period.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY.TO |
CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION.AND:SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

Congclusion

In the course of our work except:for the. matters listed below, nothing has come to our attention; which suggests that in all
miaterial respects the expenditure: disbursed and income received during the: périad 1 ‘September 2023 to 31 August
2024 has not been appliéd to piifposes intended by parliament and ‘the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities:which.govern them.

Matter 1 ; The: academy triist has a negative reserves. position which it.did not foresee :and for this reason it has not
notified the ESFA within: the required time frames that it has a.deficit on reserves which can ot be covered by brought
forward reserves..

Mo fe, 1) UMAA__

McCabe:Ford Williams
Chartered. Accountants
Reporting Accountant
Building 1063
Comforth Drive

Kenit Science Park
Sittingbourne

Kent

MES 8PX
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‘CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED'NUMBER: 07662701)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM

Donatiaris and capital grants 2
Transfer from Local Authority on
conversion

Charitable: acivities

Fanding for the academy's
-educational operations 3

Olher tFading activities
Investment income

Unrestricted
fund
£
16,243

613,118

131,124
20,607

Restricted

Fixed

Asset:

funds
£

19,285

Restricted

general
funds
£

13,928,719

31.8.24

Total
funds-
35498

14,541,837

131,121
20,607

31.8:23

Total
funds
£
35,219,741

12,995,142

119,834
16,560

Total

781,089

13,928:719

_ 14,729,063

48,351,277

EXPENDITURE ON
Raising furds 7

Charitable. activities
Academy's.éducational
‘operations. 8

43,636

886,145

1,318,875

14,479,528

43,636

16,684,548

58,461

14,903,849

Total

929,781

__1,318875

14479528

_ 16,728,184

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
Transfers betweenfunds 20
Other recoghised
gains/{losses)

Actuarial gains/(losses).on:

defined benefit schemes

(1'48.692.):
(499,613).

4,299,620)

| 1241,364

(550:809)

(77,000)

(77,000),

33,388,867

‘Net movement in funds:

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward

 (648,305)

648,305

11,058,256)

43,655,736

128,495

(2,076,121)

4443253

38,834,967

10,567,569

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD

: 42,597,480 A

{241,065)

42,356,415,

44,432,536

Thie:notes: form: part of these financial statements.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 AUGUST 2024 ~ -

318.24. 31.823

Notes £ £

FIXED ASSETS o
Tangible asséts 14 42,432,809 43,544,588

CURRENT ASSETS _ e o
Débtais. 15 404,826 267,216
Cashatbank . 712,163 1,492,441

1,116,989 1,759,657

CREDITORS A * o
Amounts-falling due within one year 16 (1,155,344) (831,495)

NET CURRENT ASSETS : (38,355) 928,162

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENTLIABILITIES 42,394544 44,472,750

CREDITORS ' , o o
Amaunts falling diie aftef more than one year 17 (19,129) - {23.214)

PENSION LIABILITY 2 19,000) {17,000)

NET ASSETS _ 42,356,415 44,432,536

FUNDS 20

Restricted funds: _ A / ‘
Fixed asset funds 42,597,480 43,655,736
Restricted income funds ~ (241,065) 128,495

o . 42356415 43,784,031
Unréstricted income fund : ; 648,305

TOTAL FUNDS 42356415 44,432,536

The. financial stafements: were -approved by ‘the Board of Trustees and ‘authorised for issue on
.'.-:';.;LD .‘?‘7. TR TR IO and were Slgned on lts bEhalf by

Sedeavees TeesevenentletTaiseisnaies

S Smith. -~Trustee

The notes form part:of these financial statemerits
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

'FORTHE YEAR ENDED:31 AUGUST 2024

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated ffom operations 1
Interést paid

Net ¢ash used in opératinig activities:

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants frofn DfE/EFA

Sale of tangible fixed assels

Inherited cash

Interest received:

Net:cash (used in)/provided by-investing-activities
Cash flows from financing:activities
Loan repayments in year

Net:cash used in financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents:in
the reporting period

Cash-and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting: period

Cash and cash equivalents at the énd of
the reporting period

31.824
£

(603,603)
__(5,266)

608,869

(207,606)
19,255.
420.

_(167.324)

__ (4085)

— (4085

(760,278)

_ 1492441

72163

The notes.form part of these financial statements
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31.8.23
£

(245,846).

__(254,436)

(209,064)
112,342

633402

Y

, {4,085).

374,881

1,117,560

192,441




CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

'NOTES T THE STATEMENT'OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

RECONCILIATION. OF NET (EXPENDITURE)/INCOME TO NET'CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting pericd {as per the
Statement of Financial Activities)
Adjistimerits for:

Depreciation ¢harges:

Capital grants from DFE/ESFA
Profiton: disposaliof fixed asséts
Interest received

Interest paid _ _

Defied benefit pension service costs
Contributions to.defined benefit pension
Net intergst on defined benefit pension
Assets transferred:af convarsion
Inherited cash

Iticrease in debtors

Ifictease in creditars.

Net-cash useéd in operations

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At1.9.23

£

‘Net cash o
‘Cash at:bank 1,497 441

31.824
£

1,318,933
(19,255)
{58):
120,607}

5,266
-318,000

(384,000).

(9,000)

(137,610)
323,849

(34,386,821}

£

43,388,967

1,344,627
(112,342)

(16,560).
8,590
362,000

{307,000):
11,000

(713,564)
(37,298)
_ 212,555

_ (603,608)

 (245846)

Cash flow
£

__(780,278)

At.31.8.24
£

713463

1,492,441

712,163

‘Debt
Debts falling due'within 1 year (3,918)
Debts falling due-after 1 year . (23.214)

(780.278)

408

. (18,129)

(27,132)

Total 1465308

_(776,193)

689,116

The notes foriv.part-of these financial statements
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial-statements , _

Character Education Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantée and .dn exempt charity incorporated in
England and Wales. The registered office is Character Education Trust, Wratham School, Borough Green Road,
Wrotham, Sevenoaks, TN15 7RD: The principal activity of the academy trust is to provide a secondary education
for pupils that satisfies the requirements of the Education Act 2022.

The financial statements -of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Chaiities SORP (FRS 402) 'Accounting and Reportmg by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their .accounts in. accordance with the Financial
‘Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective. 1 January 2019}, Financial
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the ESFA, the Charities: Act 2011 and the Companies Act
'2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention..

The-financial statements are prepared in ‘sterling which is rounded to the nearest pound.

Going concern. ‘ ‘

The: academy trust has suffered a significant deficit in the year-under review due to an error in its budgeting and
onie off costs of redundancy. This deficit along with unfunded capital spend has led to the utilisation of all of the
trusts retained reserves. and the position at the year énd is a deficit in funds of £241k. This position has been
managed by a slow down.in payments to creditors and constraint over-expenditure.

‘The: budgets for the 2024/25, year end have been reviewed and amended and the trust is forecasting a surplus.of

£125k but this-will not retum the trust to a positive: position. Tight budgetary control has been implemented ard.

the board'is. considering where further savings can be made to ensure that reserves. are replenished over the
next 3-5 years. In the interim, the trust will séek afrangements with creditors where possible to spread the
payment of liabilities:to-help.it manage its cash flow.

Unforeseen costs for instance for capital and madintenance would exacerbate the situation further and so the
position with regard reserves is very uncertain. This is:a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the-Academy Trust te: continue as a geing concern. The trustees
consider that they have adequately- disclosed this: position and coftinue to prepare the accounts on the going
concem basis as they believe with careful management of the position the trust will be able to centinue for the
foreseedble future which is.a period of at least one year from the: date of authorisation for issue: of the financial
statements, thus they continue to. adopt the going concem basis: of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.

Critical accounting éstimates and areas of judgement _ }
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expéctations.of future events that are believed to be reasonable.under the circumstances,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes: estimates and assumptions cancerning the future. The resulting -accounting -estimates
and assumptions. will, by: definition, Seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the cairying :amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are-discussed below.

Page 35 continued...




CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - cofitinued
FOR'THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accountiig éstimates and areas of judgement.

The: present value of the: Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on & number: of
factors that are: determined on an actuarial basis using a variety. of assumipfions. The assumptions. used in
determining the: net cost (mcome) for pensions inciude: the discount rate, Any" changes in. these assumptions;
‘which are disclosed in-note 21, will impact on: the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, ‘a roll
forward approach which projects results. from the latest ful actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has
been used by the actiiary in-valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll, forward approach and: a full actuarial valuation would: impact on the carrying.amaunt of the
pension Jiability:.

The net book value of freehold property, included within-fixed assets; is-based on assumptions, in relation to the
useful life. of property and the: residual value of the assets. Any element of feehold property which relates to land
is deemed not:to. have a finite life- and is not depreciated. The elément of freehold property which-does: not relate
to land.is depreciated: on-a straight-ine basis of 50 years; being the esfimated useful economic life. and it is
assumed that the asset has no residual value on the basis of its specialised nature. Any changes in these
‘assiimptions will have-afi ipact on the ¢afrying amioiit of fixed assets.

The Trustees da nat considerthere to-be:any critical areas of juddement, other than those: relating to estimation
above, which have 4 significant efféct-on the amounts recognlsed in the financial statements.

Income e . A . )
All income is recognised. in' the. Staterent of Financial Activities once the academy trust has:entitiement to the
funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a.‘receivable basis. The balance of income:
received for:specific purposes but not expended during the pericd is shown'in; the refevant funds -on: the balance:
shieet. Where income is feceived: in advance. of meetmg any performanice-related conditions ‘there is ot
unconditional entitienent fo the income-and its recognition is deferred :and included: in creditors as deferred
income ‘until the performange-related conditions are met. Where: entiflement occurs before income: is: received;
the: income:is accrued..

General Annual Grant is recognised-in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in‘the year for which it is
receivable and any:abatement in respect of the. period is deducted: from income-and récognised as a liability:

Capital grants are recognised in full when there'is an unconditional entitiement to the: grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants. are reflected in-the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. -Capital grants are fecognised
wheri there is entitiement and are not deferréd over the life.of the assét on:which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

‘Sponsarship incomie projided: to the acaderfiy trust'wihich amounts to a donation is recognlsed in the Statement
of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where:there are no performance-related conditions),
where it is probable: that the incomie will be received arid the amount can be measured reliably:

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable' basis (where there are:no. performance related conditions), where it is
probable that the income will b received and the amoiifit éan be meastired reliably.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701).

‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST.2024

1,  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Agency arrahgements
The academmy trust acts:as an agent in dlstnbutmg 16-19 bursary-funds from the ESFA. Payments received from
.the ESFA and subsequent dlsbursements to students are exctuded from the Statement of Fmancual Actrvrttes as

up to 5% of the allocatlon towards its own admlmstratlon costs and thrs is recogmsed |n the Statement of
Financial Activities. The funds received ‘and paid and'any balances held are disclosed in note 25.

Other.income
Other income including: the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trusthas provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated: for resale are'included at fair value, being the expected proceeds fror sale less the expected
costs of sale. Ifiit is practical to-assess the fair value: at recelpt it is. recognised in stock and "Income: from othier
trading -activities'. Upon sale, the value: of the: stack. is- charged ‘against 'Income: from other trading -activities" and
thé. proceeds are recognlsed as "liicoriie: from. other frading acttvmes Where: it is impraclical to. fair valie the
items due to the volume of low valuie items.they are not recogmsed in the-financial statements until they-are sold.
This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities',

‘Dona‘ted rxed' as'se'ts

'reh Iyi i whrch case the oost of the item to the donor should be used The galn is. recognlsed a8 rncome frofm
danatioris and a cofresporiding amount is included: in the - -appropriate: fixed asset category and- deprecrated over
the:useful economic life-in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Transfer on conversion

Where: assets and Jiabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an :academy; the transferred
assels ‘are measured at fair value and recognised:in the balance:sheef at the. point when,the risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the academytrust. An. equal amaunt 6f income. is récagnised as transfer:on conversion Within
donations andcapital grantincome to the net-assets received.

Expendituré

Liabilities are recognised as ‘expenditure as 'spon as there is a legal or -consfructive obligation committing the
academy frust to that-expenditure; it is probable: that a fransfer-of economic benefits will be required in settlement
and the: amount of the obligation ‘¢ar be. méasuréd: réliably:. Expenditure is accounited for on an accruals basis
and has been classified under headings: that aggregate all. cost:related to the category. Where costs cannot be
directly afributed'to particular headings they: have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use
of resurces.

Raising furids ‘ o '
Raising funds inciudes all expenditure incurréd by the academy trist to raisé funds for its charitable piposes
and includes costs of all fundraising:activities, events and non-charitable-trading.

Charitable activities

Costs: of charitable activities are incurred on the academy: trust's educational-operations, including support costs
and costs relating toithe gevemnance of the academy trust ‘apportioried to charitable activities:

Tangible fixed assets:
Assets costing more than £5,000 are capitalised :as tangible: fixed assets -and .are carried at cost; net of

depréciation and any provisionfor impairment.
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CHARACTER EDUCATIONTRUST(REG ISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -:continiued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Tangible fixed assets

Where: tangibie fixed assets have been. acquired withthe aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they ‘are included in the: Balance Sheet at cost and depreciatedover their. expected useful
economic: life. ‘Where: thers ' ( ) the 'fundmg requiring the continued use of the:
asset, the related grants are credited to a testricted fixed assét fund in thé Statemerit:of Finaiicial Activities and
carried forward in the: Balance Sheet. Depreciation -on the relevant ‘assets is charged directly to the restricted
fixed:asset fund in the Statemnent of Financial Activities, Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted fuhds, depreciation on: stich-assets is chargéd to the rirestricted fund.

Depreciation is. provided .on all tangible fixed .asséts other than freeheld land and assets: under construction; .at
the: following anniual rates in ordef to wiite: off the cost less its estiated residual value of éach asset aver its
estimated useful life:

Fréehold propérty ~20% o cost.and 2% on cast
Fixtures and:fittings: ~10% on reducing balance:
Motor: vehicles ~:25%.0n reducing balance
‘Compiitef équipitiefit -'20% 6 cost

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these- assets is nt charged:until they
are brought into use-aiid feclassified 6 frechold orleasehald land-and buildings.

A review for impairment of ‘a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes: in circumstances indicate that. the
€arrying value of any fixed asset may riot be: recoverable. Shorifalls, between the carrying valie of fixed assets
and their recoverable ‘amounts :are recognised -as impairmerits. Impaiitnent losses .are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities 'are recognised when there is an obligation- at the balance sheet date as a result.of a past event, it is:
probable that a transfer of ecanemic benefit will be required i settement; and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities :are recognised at the amount that thé academy trust anhcnpates it will pay to.
settle the debt or the amount it has received as:advanced payments for the goods:or services it must provide.

Fihancial instrumenits

The company enters into-basic:financial instruments that result in the recognition of financial assets and liabilites -

like trade-and other :accounits receivable and payable, loans from banks and-other third pames and loans to
related patties.

a) Trade and other debtors :
Tradé and othér debtors ate nitially recognised at fair value and theréafter stated at amortised cost using the,
effective. interest ‘method, less impairment Josses for bad and doubtful debts: except where the effect. of
dlscountlng would be immaterial. In such cases; the recsivables are stated at cost less impairment lgsses for
bad and doubtful debts.

b) Cash'and cash equivalents _
‘Cash and cdsh equivalents comprise-cash at bank:and in hand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES-continued

¢) Impairment of financial assets

Liabilities:

Finanicial assets that are measiired at cost and-amortised cost are assessed at thie-end of éach réportinig penod
for objective -evidence of impairment. If -objective. evidence ‘of impairment. is found, -an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial .assets measured at amortised cost, the:impairment loss is measured as the difference between: an
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at:the asset's-original effective
intérest rate. If a finahcial asset has:a Variable interest rate, the discount rate for meastifing any impairment loss
is'the current effective: interest rate: determined under the contract,

Fof ﬁhanmai assets, eastied at éost 16s§ impairriient, the impairment los$ is. méasufed &5. the differerice
between an asset's carryrng amount and the best estimate, which is an approximation, of the amount that the
company Would receive:for the asset if it were to be sold at.the reporting date:

d) Trade-and other-creditors:

Debt instruments like loans and other accounts payable are initially measured -at present value of the future
payments and .subsequently at amortised cost using the efféctive interest metriod. Debt instruments that are-
,payable wrthm one year typrcally trade payables ‘are- measured mmally and subsequently, at; the undlscounted
fmstrument constltute a f nanclng transactlon Irke the payment of a trade: debt deferred beyond normal busmess
terms or financed at-a rate of interest that is not & market rate-or in case of an outnght short-term loan ‘not at
market rate, the financial asset is ‘measured, initially and subsequently; at the present value of the future
paytients discounted at a markef rate 6f interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are-offset and the: net.amount reparted in the. statement of financial.position when
‘there is-an énforceable right to $et off-the recognised amounts.anid there is an intention to:settle:on a net basis or
‘to realise the asset-and settle the liability: srmultaneously

Taxation
The.academy trust is considered o pass-the tests set out in Paragraph  Schedule: 6 of the Finarice. Act 2010
and therefare it meets: the definition 'of a charitable company for UK corporation tax. purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxatior i respect of income Gr capital gains. feceived
within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax:Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the. exterit that such income or gains are applied ‘exclusively to: charitable:
purposes.;

‘Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which: may. be used towards meeting ahy of theé: charitable
‘objects of the academy trust at the: discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds: are resources, which are to be applied to.specific capital purposés imposed by
funders, where the asset acquired or created is held fora spegific purpose.

Restricted ‘general funds. ‘comprise all offier restricted funds received: with: restrictions imposed by the:
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education

Further-explanation of the nature and purpose: of each-fund is included in the hotes to:the finaficial Statémients.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024,

ACCOUNTING: POLICIES - continued

Hire; purchase dnd lgasing comniitriients _ o o
Rentals paid undér:opérating leases are charged to the -Statement.of Finaricial Activities on:a straight line basis
-over the period of the lease;

Pension costs:and other-post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits.to employees of the: academy trust ‘are provided by the Teachers" Pension Scheme ('TPS!)
.and the Local Gavernmment Perision Scheme: (LGPS). These are défined benefit schemes.

The TPS.is an unfunded:scheme and contributions ‘are calculated to spread the cost of pensiens over

employees werkrng hves wrth the academy trust m such a way that the pensron cost rs a substantra!ly Ievel
'Actuary based on quadrennlal valuatlons {using a prospectrve unit; credrt method TPS is an unfunded
multremployer scheme wrth no underlymg assets to as 'gn between employ onsequently, the TPS is. treated

'trust in separate trustee admrnlstered funds Pensron scheme assets are measured at} farr value and habrlmes are
‘measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit:method and-discounted at a rate equivalent to the
cufrent raté of return on & high-quality corporaté bend of equivalent tefm and ciirféncy-to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially: and are updated -at:each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to-net income!(expenditure) are the- current service costs and the costs of ‘scheme introductions, benefit
changes, $ettlemients and cirtailments. They are included as part of staff costs.as ircufred. Net' mterest on the
et defined benefit liabiiity/asset is ‘also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit -obligation -and interest income -on the scheme assets, calculated by
multlplymg the fairvalue of the scheme assets at the beginning of the Period by the rate used fo discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between: the: interest income on the scheme assets and the actiial retim on
the -scheme. assets is recognised in .other recognised ‘gains and losses. Actuarial gains .and’ losses are
recognised immediately in other recogrised gain's and losses. )

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

31.824 31.8:23

: £ £
Donations _ 16,243 1,016
Grants: . 19,255 35,212,725

35498 _35219,741

Included within danations are untestricted funds of £16:243 (2023: £7,016). Restricted donation's totalled £nil
(2023: £nil).

Included within festricted capital grants is: £19,255:({2023: £35,212,725): This consists of £41,472 of devolved
formula capital spent on fixed dssets and a clawback 6f-£22,217 of €IF funding relaing-to. a project ancelled in
a prior year. Last year, this included devolved capital fundlng, ‘additional capital funding 'and a transfer on
canversion from Aylesford School:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

2. DONATIONS:AND:CAPITAL GRANTS --continued

Grants received, included in the above, ate as follows:

Other DfE/EFSA grants.
Transfer-of Assets From School
‘Condition: Improvément Fuhding

31.8:24
£
41472

@y -
L _3k386819

£
112,342
713,564

Other grants.

_35212,725

3. FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted  Restricted
funds funds
: £ £

DfE/ESFA grants
‘General Annual Grant(GAG) ~ 10,924,261
Pupil Prémiuri 364,242,
6th Form Grant - 1,280,039
Supplementary Grant -
Teachers Pay Grant: 183,855
‘Teachers: Pension Grant 461,594
Other DfE Group Grants. - 597,186

19,255

31.8.24
Total
funds
£

10,924,261
364,242
1,260,039
183,855

161,594
597,186

31.8.23
Total
funds
£

9,757,408
1,233,302
280,003
560.
426,319

- 13521477

13,521 477

12,085,006

Local Authority. Grants 212475
Trust Expansion Grant: - ok
Other-Grants - 117,189

212,475

117489

136,360
206,381
29,920

- 329,664

320,664

a8t

Otherincome from'the academy trust's o
educational opefations __ 613118 _  77.878

690,996

537,385

613,118 13,928,719

14,541,837

12:995,142
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_-:cqnii‘hue'd'
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED‘31 AUGUST 2024

‘OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

31824 31.8:23

£ £
Lettings » 96,521 77,915
Sale: of edticatiohal materials: 34,600 _ 41,919
431,424 119,834

Included within.othiér trading activities-is unfestricted income 6f £131,121 (2023 £118, 834) and restricted income.
of £nil (2023 £nil),

INVESTMENT INCOME

31.8.24 31:8.23
£ £
Deposit account interest 20,607 16,560

Includéd within: deposnt dgcount iriteest i§ tnrestricted income .of £20;607 (2023 £16;560) and restricted income
of £nil (2023; £nil).

EXPENDITURE '
31.8.24 31.8.23
‘ Non-pay expenditure:
Staff Other
costs. Premises costs Total Total
£ £ ) £ £ £

Raising furids
Costs incufred by trading for.a fundralsmg purpose
Direct costs - 43,636 43,636 58,461
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations o
Direct costs 10,098,406 1,229,973 1,016;357 12,344,736. 5,738,263
Allocated support costs 1 003,119 1,164,806 2,171,887 _ 4,339,812 5,165,586

11,101,525 2,394,779 3:231,880 16,728,184 14,962,310

Paged2” continued..,




CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

6. EXPENDITURE - continued
:Ne.t;.“i,.ncome/(expendit.u;é) Is stated after charging/(crediting):

31.8.24 31823

£ £
Auditor's remuneration 16,388 9,000
Auditer's teémiineratiori for non-audit work 5,458, -
Audit-related-assuranceservices - 6,305
Depreciation - owned:assets 1,318,933 1,344,627
Other operating leasés: 2,659, -
Surplus on disposal of fixed assets (58) -

7. RAISING FUNDS.

Costs incurred by trading for a:fundraising purpose
31.824 31.8.23
‘3G Pitch Expenditure 43,636 58 461

8. ‘CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
31.8.24 31.8.23
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £

Direct costs. 329146  12,015590: 12,344,736 9,738,263
-Support costs 556,999 _ 3782813 _ 4339812 _ 5165586

886,145 _ 15,798,403 16,684,548 14,903,849

31.8.24 31.8.23
Total Total
£ £

Analysis of support costs :

Siipport staff costs: 1,003119 ~ 2,235,895

Depreciation 95,034 83,388

‘Techniology-costs 137,974 11,457

Ptemises costs 1:164,806 2,373,792

Legal costs - other 72,133 -

Other supporf costs: . 1,837,518 436,073

Governancé costs 29,228 24,981

‘Total support.costs 4,339,812 5,165,586
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - coritinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST. 2024

9, STAFFCOSTS
31.8.24 31823

£ £
Wagdes dnd salaries 7,985470 6955477
‘Sacial security costs ) A 847,853 718,745
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,788,337 1,554,937
) ( 10,621,660 9,229,159
Stipplyteachér costs 351,066 407, 607
‘Compensation payments 95,299 -
‘Severance:payments ~ L ..33s500 .«

11,101,525 9,636,766

The-averagé number of persons: (including senior anagertient team) employed by the academy:triist.during the
‘yearwas.as follows:

o 31.8.24 31823
Teachers 103 120
Management 23 2
Support Staff 86 __ 8

* P}

The:number of employeés.whase employee beniefits {excluding employer perision costs)-exceeded £60,000 was:

- o 31.8.24 31.8:23
£60,001 <£70,000 11 ’
£70,001 - £80,000.
£80,004 - £90,000
£100,001 - £110,060,
£110,001 - £120,000.
£140,001 -£150,000°
£150,001 -£160,001

"\n , - s RS RS

'Key Managerient Personnel

The key management personnel-of the Academy Trust comprise the trustees and the .senior leadership team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including :employer -pension contributions and
-émployer national insurarice «contributions). received by’ key management personnel for their services' to the
Academy Trust was£2,168,988.(2023: £1,766,013).

Severance Payments

The:academy trustmade 1 severance: payment'in the year, disclosed in the-following band:

£0 - £25,000: [}
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10.

11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

STAFF COSTS - continued

£25,001 - £50,000

1

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

M Wright (€EO-and Accounting-Officer):

The value. of trustees’ remuneratioh. and other benéfits wias as follows:

Remuneration £150,004 - £455,000.(2023: £140,001 -£145,000) _
Employer's pension contributions paid £35,001 - £40,000 (2023:.£30,001 -£35,000)

INCOME AND.ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and capital grants

Transfer from Local Authority on:conversion

Charitable activities: o
Funding for the-academy’s eduicational -
operations

lnves.tment income

Total

EXPENDITURE ON

Raising funds: -

Chafitable activities:
Academy's educational operations:

Total

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
Transfers between funds.

Other recognised gains/(losses);
Actuarial Gains on defined benefit scherres

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

One of more tiustees: has been paid rermuneration or has received other benefits from employment ‘with' the
=academy trust. The pnncnpal and other staff tristees :only feceive rémuniération in Tespect of -sefvices: they
provide undertaking the roles. of principal and staff members under; their coritracts: of employment

During the:year ended 31 Augtist 2024, no éxpenses wefé reimburséd o paid directly to-trustees (2023: £NIL),

Restricted , "
Fixed Restiicted
Unrestricted Asset general Total
fund furids funds. furids
£ £ £ £
720,580 34,499,161 o= 35219744
- 107,000 (107,000). .
480,527 - 12514615  12,995142
119,834 : 119,834
16,560 - - 16,560
1,337,501 _ 34,606,161 _ 12407615 _ 48,351277
58,461 - 58.461
665,624  1,345962 12,892,263 14,903,849
724,085 1,345,962 12,892,263 14,962,310
613416 33,260,199 (484,648) 33,388,967
(18,263) 87,316 (69,053)
446000 446,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FORTHE YEAR ENDED'31 AUGUST 2024

11. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES contmued

12,

13,

a1 .4..

Fived Restricted
Unrestricted Asset general Total
fund funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Net movement in funds 595,153 33,347,515 (107.701) 33,834,967
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 53,152 10,308,221 236,196 10,597,569
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD __ 648305 43655736 _ 128495 44432536

‘TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), ‘an
altemative to‘insurance where UK government funds cover losses that
officets fiom. claims arising from negiigerit-acts, &ffors. or omissions: occuriing: whiist on -academy tust businéss,
and provides cover up to £10,000,000: It'is not, possible:to:quantify the: trustees -and-officers indemnity element
from'the overalt cost of the RPA scheme. - '

CENTRAL ‘SERVICES

:charges arose

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS:

Fixtures
Freehold ~and Moter Computer ‘
praperty fitings vehicles equipment Totals
£ £ £ £ £
cosT . L
At1 Septeniber 2023 46,956,749 382,651 19,916 528,882 47,888,198
Additions 59, 062 123,893 - 24,651 207,606
Disposals : {8,000 -~ (8,000)
At 31.August 2024 47,015811 506,544 11,916 553533 _ 48,087,804
DEPRECIATION . o
At 1 Sepletiber 2023 3,886,914 105,458 11133 340,105 4343810
Charge for year 1,223,841 37,932 2437 55,023 1,318,933
Eliminated an disposal 4 - {1,638) (7,638)
At 31:August 2024 5110755 143,390 5,632 395,128 5,654,905
NET BOOK VALUE o 3 A
At 31 August 2024 41905056 363,154 6284 4158405 42,432,899
At 31 August 2023 43,069,835 217,193 8,783. 188,777 43,544,588

Paged6 - continued....
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CHARACTER EDUGATION TRUST (REGISTERED:NUMBER: 07662701}
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --contintied

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

"TANGIBLE FIXED.ASSETS: - continued

Character Education Trust's: transactions relating to land and buildings included:

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors

VAT

Prepayments:and accrued income

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Other loans (see:note: 18)
Trade creditors. '
Social security-and other taxes:
Other:creditors

Accruals:and deferred income

Deferred income, at 1-September 2023
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year:

Deferred income at 31 August 2024

Atthe balance sheetdate, the academy trust was holding funds as follows:

Catering.income
Charity income
‘School trips
Wrotham Walk
Grant funding

Defeiréd income at 31 August.2024

Page 47

‘The.freehold of Aylesford School was:donated to the.academy trust at a value of £33,900,000.

‘The-freehiold 6f 39 Teapot Lane ias donated to the academy: trust at a value of £380,000.

31.8.24
£
13,021
152,545
239,259

31823
£
6,353

59,264

201,599

404,826

267,216

31.8.24

£ .
3,918
357,196
423,853
16,728
353,649

31.8.23
£ . ae
3,918
53,744
360,665
19,480
:393,688

1,155,344

831,485

£
22,244
(3,361}

20568

31.08.23
£
103;380
(81,577)

441

39,451

22,244

31.08.24
£
12,030
1:448
20:944
4,029

1000

31.08.23

£
8:502:
7,265
1 ,000

39451

22,244,
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18.

Fixed assets -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continuied
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE: THAN ONE YEAR.

Other loans (see note 18)

)

LOANS

An analysis.of the maturity-of loans:is given below:

Amounts falling due within one:year on demand:
Other loans

Amounts falling between-one and two years;
Other loans - 1:2 years:

Amourits falling due between two and five. years:
Othef loans - 2-5 years

CIF loans of £10,000 and £23,848 Wefe awarded in 2020.
The loan of £10,000;incurs interest at 1.68% annually-and is repayable.over 12 years.
The loan of £23,848.is interest free and i repayable over9 years.

Restricted
Fixed Restricted
“Unrestricted Asset general
fund . finds funds.
£ £ £
42,432,899
365,021
{181,311
(19,129)

712545
(934,580

Current:assgts 39,453
Giifrent liabilities (39,453)
Long term liabilities -

31:8.28,

28214

31:8.3
3,918

19,296

Total
funds.
£
42,432,899
1,116,989
(1,155,344)

(19,129)

Penision: libility e

_ - 42597480 _  (241,065)

(19000) |

_.(19,000)

42,356,415
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued.

" FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - continued

Comparative information i respect of the precéding period is ds follows:

Fixed assets
Cijtrent assets
Current liabiliies
Long term liabilities:
Pefision fiability:

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Restricted general funds.

General Anntial Grant (GAG)
Pension Reserve '

Restricted fixed asset funds
Assets held for depreciation.

Sirikihg: fund
Salix loan
Capital furiding

Total restricted funds

Untestricted fund
General fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Restricted
Fixed
Unrestricted Asset
fund furids
£ £
o= 43,544,588
648,305 138,280
- (3:918)
- (23,214)

‘Restricted
general

funds
£

73,072
(827,577

(17,000) _

31.8:23

Total
funds:
£

43,544,588
4,750,657
(831,495)
(23,214)
. (17,000)

648305 43655736

128,495

44,432,536

Net

movement.

At 1923 ‘in funds
£ £

145,495
(17,000)

(626,809)
" (2,000)

Transfers
between
funds
£

258,249

31.824
£

(222,065)
(19,000)

128,495 (627,809)

258,249

(241,065)

3544588 (1,318,875)
138:280 ]
(27,432)

Yo

207,186
49348
4,085
(19.255)

42,430,899
187,628
(23,047)

-

_42,597480

43655736 _{1,209,620)

241,364

499,613

42,356,415

(499,613)

J

44432536 (2.076.121)

_ 42,356,415
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701)

20.

NOTES TO'THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED; 31 AUGUST 2024

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - contiriued

Net movement.in funds, included in‘the above: are as follows:
Incoming Resources  Gaingand — Movement

_resources  expended losses infunds
) £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds ) X

General Annual Grant (GAG) 10,924,261  (11;550,070) - (625,809)

Pension Reseive: - 75,00( (77,000) {2,000)

Other DfES/ESFA grants 597,186 -

Othergrant income: 117,189 - -
Puipil Premiur 364,242 - -
6th Form Grant " 1,290,039 - %
Teachers Pay Grant; 183,855 - -
Teachers Penision Grant 161,594 - -
Local Adithority Grants 242475 ¥

RPA Insurance Claim 77,878

13,928,719 ;(1,'4,6;7:9','528)" {77,000} {627;809)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Assets held for depreciation - (1,318875) . (1,318,875)°
Capital fiinding _ 19285 - = 19255

19285 (13i8E7S) - (1.209620)

Total restricted funds 13947974 _(15798408) _ (T7.000) _ (1,927429)

Unrestricted fund. _ . o
General fund 781,089 (929,781): - (148,692)

TOTAL FUNDS 14729063 _(16,728,184) (77,000) _ (2,076,121)
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20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - cotitifilied

Comparatives formovement in funds

Restricted.general funds
Géneral Annial Grant (GAG):
Pension Reserve

Other DES/ESFA grants

Restricted fixed asset funds
Assets held for-depréciation
‘Sinking fund

‘Salix loan

Capital furiding

Total restricted funds;

Unrestricted fund

- General fund

‘TOTAL FUNDS

At1.9.22
£

469,806
(289,000)

© 55390

Net
movement
in fuids
£

(237,381)
272,000

(73.267)

Transfers

between

funds
£

186:930)

17,877

A
31.823
£

145,495
(17,000)

236,196

(38,648)

(69,053)

128,495

10,186,333
120017
(31,218)

33,088

33,147,857

210,398
18,263

()

43,544,588

138:280
(27,132)

10308221 _

2340

33,260,199

87,316

_ 43655736

10,544,417

18,263

43,784,231

53,152

613,416

(18,263)

648,305.

33834,967

44,432,536
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

20. MOVEMENT IN'FUNDS - continued
Comparative het movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming ~ Resource§ ~ Gainsand  Movement
Tesources. expended. losses infunds
£ £ £ £
Restricted general funds. o o o
General Annual Grant (GAG). 9,757,408  (9,994,789) - (237,381).
Pension Reserve (107:000)  {67,000) 446,000 272,000
Other DES/ESFA grants 426919 (500,186) (73,267)
Other grantincome 29,920 (29,920) - -
Pupil Preniium 334,985 {334,985) '
6th Form Grant. 1233302 (1,233,302)
Supplernentary, Grant 280,003 (280,003)
Teachers Pay-Grant 560 (560)
Teachers.Pension Grant ' 51,919 (51,919) -
Local Authority: Grants 136,360 {136;360) - -
Trust Expansion Grant 206,381 (206,381) - -
RPA Insurance Claim , 56,858 (56;858), -

12407615 (12.802,263) ___ 446000 __ (38,648)
Restricted fixed asset funds o o o
Asséts held for depréciation 34,493,819  (1,345.962) - 33,147,857
Capital funding 112,342 - 112,342

/34,606,161 _ {1,345.962) -~ 33,260,199

Total Festriced funds _ATOIRTI6  (14238205) 446000 _33,201551

Unrestricted fund ) »
General fund. 1,337,501 {724,085) 613,416

TOTAL FUNDS: _ 48,351,277 (14,962,310)

446,000 _ 33,834,967
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:- contmued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

‘MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Total fund balance; as at 31 Augist: 2024 were: allocated as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
Wrotham Schol 218147 422,700
Aylesford School _(3918) 371,100
(222,085, 793,800
‘Restricted fixed asset funds 42,507,480 ;43,-655-,.73,61
Pension reserve (19,000 (17,000)
42,356,415 44,432,536
Expenditure incurred by each academy during thie yéar was s follows:
Teaching and o
educational Other.costs
support staff Othersupport ~ Educational ~ excluding o
costs staff costs .supplies  -depréciation Total.
£ £ £ £ £
Wrotham School 5,737,039 66,799 143,257 1,652,622 7,599,717
‘Aylesford Schaol “5,;022,?742; . 73982 _ 158,208 2,554,596 7,809,534
Total 10,759,787 140,781 _ 301,465 4,207,218 15,409,251

The specific puirpases for which funds areito; be applied.are. as follows:-

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Funds must bé used fof the. normal furining costs 6f the Acaderiiy Trust.. The Academy Trist is allowed to carry

forward funds in accordance: with the: Academies Financial Handbook, which is reviewed annually, Underthe

funding agreement with the Secretary of §tate_ the Academy: Trust was it subject to. @ limit on the amoiint of
‘GAG it could carry forward:at:31 August 2024.

Other restricted general funds '
Funding is provided by governmesit grants in addition 'fo the GAG which miist be iused for the provision of
education for: specxal needs purposes and other specified activities,

The: pensnon liability has beeft charged to restncted reseives. This:is because the obligation to fiind the: deficit is
met from the General Annual Grant funding which: is ‘accounted:for through restricted reserves and therefore jt:is
more:appropriate:to.charge the deficit to:restricted reserves:

ﬁRestncted f" xed asset 'funds

Page-53 continued...




CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST(REGISTERED: NUMBER: 07662701)

20.

iR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - tontinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31_AUGUST 2024

MOVEMENT IN. FUNDS - continued

DfE/ESFA capital grants for assets have:been utilised for the purchase ‘of tangible-fixed ‘assets:and transferred to

Asséts Held'for Depreciation.

Unrestricted funds A _ S o
Uniestrictéd funds can:be used for.any purpesé at the discrétion of the: Academy Trust:

Transfers between funds

£49,348 was transférred. from general unrestricted furids ta the sinking fund 16 be tield for future repairs and
maintenance to:the 3G pitch,

£4,085 was transferred from general unrestricted funds to the Salix loan fund to cover repayments: made on the

loan.
A net transfer of £19,255 was made: from capital funding to assets held for depreciation, which consists -of

£41,472 of devolved formula capital spent on fixed assets:and a clawback of £22,217 of GIF funding relating to a
;pro;ect éancelled'in & pricr year..

£187,931 was. transferred from unrestricted funds to: assets. held for deprec:atlon to-cover purchases of fixed
assets made in the:year.

Altrairisfer of £258,249 was made fromunrestricted funds'to. GAG fo cover-expenditure during theyear.

'The academy trust is: carrying a, net deficit of £222,065 on restricted: general funds (excluding pension reserve)

and it has no unfestricted funds; this has. occlirréd becatise of ari efror in its budgetmg process. and uriforeseen

redundancy’ costs. ‘The academy tiist. is taking action to retum thesé funds to surplus namely closely
monitoring budgets in the new financial' year and -ensuring that only necessary expenditure. is carried out. The
Board viill dctively consider-what-cost savings: can also be made in order fo replenish. reserves.

PENSION-AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The -academy trist's employees beiong to twé pnncnpal ‘pension scheres: the Teachérs' Pension. Schieme
England-and Wales. (TPS) for academiic and related staff; and the Local Governmenit Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching «staff, ‘which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
$chémes.

Thie latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £221,315 were payable to the:schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 -.£171,868)-and are

fncluded:within creditors.
Teachers' pension scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme. (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme; goveined by: the

Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations: 2014. Membership:is automatic for teachers in ‘academies. All teachers

have the option to opt-out of the: TPS following enrolment.

The: TPS is an unfunded scheme fo-which both the member-and employer makes contributions, as a percentage

of salary -these: contributions are credited to. the: Exchequer. Refirement and othier pension benefits are. paid by

publicfunds provided by Parliamient.
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - ¢ontinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

PENSION AND. SIMIL:AR OBLIGATIONS - continued

Valuation of the teachers’ pension.scheme:

The Govemmient Actuary, using fiormal -dctuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review. of the TPS in
accardance with the Pubfic: Service Pensions (Valuatlons and Emplayer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by

HM Treasury every 4. years: The aim: of the: Feview: is to-ensuie scheme costs ‘are recognised and managed
appropiiately-and the review specifies the level of future contributions.,

Aand many other factors The latest actuanal valuatlon of the TPS was. carned out as at 31 March 2020 The

valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate; set

by HMT, ‘applying . notional investment retiirn based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key: elements of the
valuation-and subsequent consultation are;

s Emproyer contribution: rates set at 28.68% of perisionable pay (including a 0.08%. administration lévyi). This
is-an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the- cost.control result isstch that no: change in member
benefits is needed;

+ Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in-paymént and the:estimated:cost of future. bienefits) for sérvice to
the effective date of £262,000 niillioh and notional assets (estimated future contributionis together with the
‘notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a. notienal past service deficit of
£39,800 miliion.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The: next valuation result is. due to be
implemented from 1 April:2028.

The employer's pension costs paid:to. TPS'in the period amounted to £1,464,856 (2023 --£1,070,043).

A copy of the valuation repert and supporting docimentation is:of the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set.out in FRS: 102, the TPS'is.an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy’

trust is unable to identify its share of the tindeflying asseéts.and liabilities: 6f-the plan. Accordingly: the academy

trust has taken advantage:of the exemption in FRS 102-and has.accounted for its contributions to-the scheme as
if it were a defined contribution scheme: The academy: trust has set out above the information available on-the
scheme..

Local government:pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension: scheme, with the assets held in ‘separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution:made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £484,000 (2023 £388,000), of which

employer's contributions totalled £384,000 (2023 - £307,000) and employees' contributions ‘fotalled £1060;,000

(2023 - £81,000);

The agreed -contribution rates for futuré: years are 22.50 per cefit for efmployers and a, variable. ;pércent for

employees.dependent on salary.

Parliament has agreed, at:the request of the Secretary. of State:for Eduication, to a guarantee that, in the event:of
an -academy trust -closure, outstanding Local Government Pension .Scheme: liabilities would be: met by the

Department for Edueation. The:guarantee came into force-on 18 July.2013 :and on-21 July 2022; the- Department:

for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the. guarantée; with a parliamentary mintite ‘publishéd-on GOV.UK.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

“The.amounts recognised in the Staternent of Financial Ativities afe as follows:

Current service:cost

Net interest from:net defined benefit

asset/liability
Past senvicé:cost
Administration costs.

Actual retum on plan:assets

Opening defined benefit obligation.

Current service cost

Contributions by scheme patticipants

Interest cost

Benéfits paid

Businéss combinations
Remeasurements:

Actiiarial (gains)llosses from changes

demographic:assumptions

Actuarial (gains)losses from changes’in

firfancial assumptions

Oblig other remieasuremerit

Changes in the presentvalue of the defined benefit obligation are-asfollows:

Page.56

Defined benefit
pension. plans

1824 31823

£ £
318,000 469,000

(9,000} 11,000

3,000 1,000,

312,000 481,000

210000 151,000

Defined benefit
pension plans.

3824 31823

£ £

3764000 2695000

318,000 362,000
100;000 81,000

204,000 163,000

(5000)  (185,000)
- 4,166,000

(9,000). (60,000)
193,000 {863,000)

(19000) 405,000 -

4,546,000 3,764,000

continued....
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701):

2,

'NOTES TO'THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024,

PENSION. AND SIMILAR:OBLIGATIONS - contintied

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Contributions by emmployer
Coritributions by. scheme participants
Expected retum

Actuarial gains/(lossés).

Benefits: paid

Settlements

Remeasurements:

Returm on plan assets (excluding interest
income) ' '
Assets other réméasurement

The amolints recogniséd in otfiér fecogniséd géins and losses are as follows:

Actuarial (gainis)losses frori chariges in

demographic:assumptions

Actuarial (gains)!osses from changes in

firiancial assumptions.

Obligother remeasurement

Return-on plan assets (exeluding interest
income)

Assets:other remeasurement

Page 57

Defined benefit
pension plans
31824 31.8.23
£ £

3747000 2,406,000

307,000
81,000
1521000

(1,000)
(185,000)
1,059,000

384,000
100,000
213,000
(3,000)
{5,000)

91,000 (178,000):
- 106,000

4,527,000

3,747,000

Defined benefit
pension plans
31824 31828
£ £

8,000 60,000

(193,000)
© 19,000

863,000
(405,000)
91000 (178,000)

. 106,000

(74,000 446,000
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CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07662701}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

21. PENSION.AND-SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued,

The major categories:of:scheme.assets as a percentage-of total scheme-assets are: as follows:

Equities

Gils
Otherbands
Property

Cash
Absolute refurn
Infrastructtire:

Défined bengfit
pension plans:

73
7%
19%
o
2%
5%

100%

63%
1%
14%
0%
1%
7%
4%

100%

Principal actuarial assumptionis.at the Statement of Financial Positién: date (expressed as Weighted averages):

Discourit Fate

Future salary increases

Fuiture pension ificreases (CPI):
Commutation of pensich to ufmp.sums
Inflation assumptions: (RP)

The ctirrerit nortality assumptions include. sufficient allowance for future improvements in mertality rates: The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males:
Females:

Retiring in 20 years
Males '
Females:

Serisitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption -1 year increase
Mortality assuiiption « 1 year decrease-
CPI rate +0.1%

CPlrate -0.1%

Pagé 58

4,6
4677
4;419,000.
4,620,000

31.8.24
5.05%
3.80%
2.80%

50.00%
3.45%

20.7
233

22.

247

1,

000

4,474,000

000

31.8.23
5.35%
3.85%
2.85%

50.00%
3.05%

207

23.2

22
248

£
3,705,000
3,824;000.
3,670,000
3,661,000
3,824,000
3,705,000

‘conifiriued...
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23,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
4 FOR THE YEAR ENDED:31 AUGUST 2024

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

31.8:24 31:8223,
Contracted but not:provided for in the financial statements - 32,467
LONG-TERM: COMMITMENTS; INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES
Minimum lease payiments under rion-canceliable operating leases fall due as:follows:
31.8.24 31823
£ £
Within-one year 5,142 5,142
Between-orie arid five years: : 12,855 A7.997
17,997 23,139
Minimurn lease payments under otfier contractual commitmerits fall dug as follows:
31.8.24 31.823
—_ £ £
‘Within-one year 292,876 292,873
Between.one and five years. 1,464,367 1,464,367
[h:thore than five:years 1471494 1,464,367
2,928,737 3,221,607

The. Character Educatiori Trust occiipies premisés which ate siibject to a private: finance: initiative: (PF1) contract.
The: trust itself s not party to this service concession contract, however the :academy trust has: entered in‘to. &

Finance leases treated as operating leases

31.08.24

£
Within ene year 15,627
Betieen one.and fivéyeats 46,881

62,508

Page 59

‘supporting :agreement towatds: the costs of the local authority. The; above: rélates to the ‘commitments to
‘opérating paymenitsincluding:costs for catéring, cleaning, utilities and other ancillary services.

,At 31 August 2024 the tofal of the: Academy Trusts fliture minimdn lease payhents under fion - éancéllable

31.08.23
£
1 5,‘627

62,508

78,136
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public and private sector ‘orgaiiisations, tranisactions may take place:;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - coritinued.
.FOR THE'YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST" 2024

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES.

Owing to. the hattre of the academy trust and the compasition of .the board of trustees bemg drawn fromilocal
jith organisations. in which: the trustees

have an inferest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period

2024 (£). 2023 (£}

20,001 -25,000 15,001 - 20,000
iPenswn contnbutlons paid -
R Malik N N
Reriurietation 10,001 --20,000 5,001 < 10,000
Pension contributions paid 5,001 -10,000. 1--5,000
W Reeve .
Remuneration , 1 - 5,000 -
Pension contributions paid
M Newman
Remuneration ‘ 1- 5,000 :
Pension ¢ontfibutions paid .

The transactions ‘above. are: all with family. members of trustees andlor key management personnel. These:
transactionis were received by'the sfaff members in the course of their employment for the trust.

All. transactions: involving such -organisations: :are conducted in accordance: with: the: :requirements -of the -

Acadenies Financial Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and

obtaining their approval where rediired, arid With the: deademmy trust's financial regulations. .and rdritial

‘procurement procedures relating to connected ‘and related party Transactions.

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The Multi Academy Trust distributes 16+19 bursary funds:te-students as an agent for'the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2024 the trust réceived £22,593 (2023: £17,432) and distributed £23,056+(2023: £2,541)

from:the fund: An amount of £16,728 (2023: £17,191) is included in trade:creditors relatmg to undistiibtited: fiinds
that are repayable to ESFA:

Page 60 continued...
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS : ¢ontinted
EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

AYLESFORD SCHOOL CONVERSION TO CHARACTER EDUCATION TRUST

On 1st September 2022 Aylesford School converted to academy status under the Academles Act 2010 and all

The transfer had been ‘accounted for as -a -combination that is in"substance a gift. The assets and: liabilities

transferred were valued at their fair value: and reeogmsed ifi {fie balance; stieet under the appropriate headings

with :a cofresponding inet amount. recognlsed as:a net:gain in the' Statement:of Financial Activities as:Donatiohs -

transfer from Lecal Authority on conversion.

The following table: sets it the fairvalues of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the SOFA,

Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted Restricted Asset funds
funds General funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible‘fixed assets
Freehold land and buildings - = 34,280,000 34,280,000
Othér tangible fixed assets - - 213,819 213,819
‘Current assets:
(Cash - représenting budget surplus on ) ) )
Local-Autherity funds 713,564 - - 713,564
Current liabilities . . .
Non eurrent liabilities: - =
LGPS Pension - - (107,000 (107,000)
‘Net assets 713,564 - 134,386,819 35,100,383
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